U.S. Department of Justice

Criminal Division

September 30, 2016

Kathryn H. Ruemmler
Latham & Watkins LLP
555 11th Street, N.W.
Suite 1000

Washington, DC 20004

Re:  Tenet HealthSystem Medical, Inc.
Dear Ms. Ruemmiler:

The United States Department of Justice, Crimtinal Division, Fraud Section and the United
States Attorney’s Office for the Northern Distriot of Georgia (the “Offices™) and Tenet
HealthSystem Medical, Inc. (on iis behalf and on behalf of its subsidiaries) (collectively, “Tenet
Subsidiary™), pursuant to authority granted by the Board of Directors of its parent, Tenet
Healthcare Corporation (“Tenet?) attached Heréto (Aitachment B), -enters into this Non-
Prosecufion Agreement (“Agreement”). As indicated below, Tenet is undertaking certain
abligations under the Agreement.

1. Relevant Considerations, The Offices enter into .this_ﬁgrecmcnt based on the
individual facts and circumstances presented by this ease, including those described below.

a. Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet engaged in remedial measures, including:

i, substantially restricting the types of services that they pemmit their
hospitals to purchase from a referral source;

ii. adding new policies and amending existing policies for conlracts with
referral sources to make moré clear the requirements as to the
identification of the need for contracted-for services, defining the scope
of contracted-for services, justifying the selection of a particular
contractor over a non-referral source option, compensating contractors
at fair market value, and obtaining adequate documentation to justify
payments for services rendered,

ui.  making improvements to its corporate auditing and monitoring of

hospital contracts with referral sources, including verifying that
payments to referral sources are substantiated with appropriate
supporting documentation pursuant to the terms of the contract, and
amending policies to require that, in the event an audit has identified a



deficiency related to a referral source contract and the hospital has failed
to meet a deadline to take corrective action, the hospital must suspend
all federal program bills related to the audit deliciency;

iv.  instituting an enhanced training program to implement and ensure
compliance with the new and enhanced policies described above;

v. taking steps to centralize oversight of all referral-source contracts by
shifting contract administrator positions from hospitals to its corporate
headquarters and having these pasitions report to the legal department;
and

conduct described in the Statement of Facts attached hereto (Attachment
A): (1) Atlanta Medical Center, Inc. (“Atlanta Medical”); (2) North

Fulton Medical Center, Inc. d/bfa North Fulton Hospital (*North.

‘Fulton”); and (3) Spalding Regional Medical Center, Inc. d/b/a Spalding
Regianal Medical Center (“Spalding™);

‘b Tcrict Subsidiary and Tenet have committed to continue to énhance their

cem‘phance and. ethies program and internal controls, including ensuring that
their complisnce program 1s designed and xmp!emcntcd to prevent and detect
vigfations of the Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(b); and the Stark
Law, 42 US.C. § 1395nm;

Tenet has agreed to retain an Ind{:pmdcnt Compliance Monitor to aid in the
'cnforcenfenj; implementation, and maintenance of its compliance and ethics
‘program and internal controls, as provided in Paragraphs 7-9, below;

. Teiict, Ténet Subsidiary, and their subsidiaries that previously owned and

“operated hospltals including Atlanta Medical and North Fulton, have agreed to
a global resolution of criminal and civil liability relating to the conduct
described in the Statement of Facts attached hereto (Attachment A), Which
includes this Agreement and the following components:

i.  Atlanta Medical, a direct subsidiary of Tenet HealthSystem Medical,
Inc. and an indirect subsidiary of Tenet, has agreed to plead guilty to
one count of conspiring under Title 18, United States Code, Section 371
to violate the Anti-Kickback Statute, Title 42, Unifed States Code,
Sections 1320a-7b(b)(2)(A) and (B) and 1320a-7b(b)(1)(A) and (B); and
to-defraud the United States, and to pay a $84,696,727 forfeiture money
judgment pursuant to a negotiated plea agreement, which is
incorporated by reference into this Agreement (Attachment D);

ii.  North Fulton, a direct subsidiary of Tenet HealthSystem Medical, Inc.
and an indirect subsidiary of Tenet, has apreed to plead guilty (o one
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vi,  divesting, in April 2016, three subsidiary hospitals involved in the



count of conspiring under Title 18, United States Code, Section 371 to
violate the Anti-Kickback Statute, Title 42, United States Code,
Sections 1320a-7b(b)(2)(A) and (B) and 1320a-7b(b)(1)(A) and (B), and
to defraud the United States and to pay a $60,019,618 forfeiture money
judgment pursuant to a negotialed plea agreement, which is
incorporated by reference mto this agreement (Attachment E); and

iti.  Tenet has agreed to pay $368,000,000 to the United States, the State of
Georgia, and the State of Scuth Carolina to resolve jts civil Hability for
certain civil claims, including under the federal False Claims Act and
State of Georgia Medicaid False Claims Act pursuant to a civil
Settlement Agreement, which is incorporated by reference into this
Agreement (Attachment F);

e. the nature and seriousness of the offense, including that senior executives and
employees of Tenet Subsidiary, some working as senior executives at Atlanta
Medical, North Fulton, Spalding, and Hilton Head Hospital, engaged in at least
a 10-year scheme to pay over $12 million to the owners and operators of a chain
of prenatal care clinics designed to inducé the owners and operators to: (1) refer
Medicaid p'ment& to Atlanta Medical, North Fulton, Spalding, and Hilton Head
Hospuai i‘nr labor and delivery services; and (2) arrange for these hospitals to
provide services 1o these Medicaid patients and their newborns, resulting in the
hospitals receiving. over ‘$146 million from the Medicaid and Medlcare-
programs for the illegally referred patlenis

f.. Tenét Subsidiary has no prior eriminal history; and

g. Tenet Sub'si‘c':ﬁa'ry"zixid Tenet (on its behalf and through its subsidiaries and

~ affiliates) have agreed to continue to cooperate with the Offices in any ongoing
investigafion of the «conduct of Tenet Subsidiary, Tenet, their subsidiaries and
affiliates and their. Oﬂ"lc,{'»rs directors, employees, agents, business partners, and
consultants rélating to -vi-o’l'ati'ons of the Anti-Kickback Statute, or additional
conduct; as provided in Paragraph 5, below.

2. Acceptance of Responsibility. Tenet Subsidiary admits, accepts, and acknowledges

that it is responsible under. United States law for the acts of its officers, directors, employees, and

agents as set forth in the attached Statement of Facts attached hereto as Attachment A and
incorporated by reference jnto this Agreement; and that the facts described in Attachment A are
true and accurate. Tenet Subsidiary also admits, accepts, and acknowledges that the facts
described in Attachment A constitute a violation of law, specifically a conspiracy under Title 18,
United States Code, Section 371, to violate the Anti- Kickback Statute, Title 42, United States
Code, Sections 1320a- ’?b(b)(2)_(A) and (B) and 1320a-7b(b)(1)(A) and (B), and to defraud the
United States.



3. Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet expressly agree that they shall not, through present or
future attomeys, officers, directors, employces, agents or any other person authorized to spealk for
Tenet Subsidiary or Tenet make any public statement, in litigation or otherwise, contradicting the
acceptance of responsibility set forth above or the facts deseribed in the Statement of Facts attached
hereto as Attachment A. Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet agree that if they or any of their direct or
indirect subsidiaries or affiliates issues a press release or holds any press conference in connection
with: this. Agreement, Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet shall first consult the Offices to determine (a)
whether the text of the release or proposed statements at the press.con ference are true and accurate
with respect to matters relating to this Agreement; and (b) whether the Offices have any objection
to the release.

4. Term of the Agreement. Tenet Subsidiary’s and Tenet’s obligations under this
Agreement shall have a term of 3 years from the later of the date on which the Agreement 1S
execuled or the date on which the independent compliance monitor (the “Monitor™) is retained by
Tenet, as described beiow (the “Term”™). Tenet Subsidiary agrees, however, that in the event the
Offices dctermme, in their sole discretion, that Tenet Subsidiary or Tenet, or any of Tenet’s
suhsidxanes or affiliates has knowuu,ly violated any provision of this Agreement, subject to
Paragraph 12, below, an extension or extensions of the term of the Agreement may be imposed by
the Offices, in their sole discretion, for up to a total time period of one year, without prejudice to
the: Offices’ ught to proceed as provided in Paragraphs 13-14, below. Any extension of this
Aggeemcm sxtends all terms .of this Agreement, mciudmg the terms of the mmutorbh*p in
Attachment C, for an equivalent period. Conversely, in the ¢vent the Offices find, in their sole
-discrc’tlon, that there exists a change in ¢ircumstances sufficient to climinate the need for a
mom’torshlp as described in Attachment C, or that the other provisions of this Agreement have
been satistied, the monitorship or the Term of this Agreement may be terminated early.

5. TFuture Cooperation and Disclosure Requirements. Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet shall
cooperate fully with the Offices in ary and all matters relating to the conduct described in this
Agreement and Attachment A and other conduct under investigation by the: Offices or any other
component of the Department of Justice at any time during the Term of this Agreement, subject to
apphcab]e law ‘and regulations, unti] the later of the date upon which all investigations and
prosecutions arising out of such conduct are concluded, or the end of the Term. At the request of

the Offices, Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet shall also cooperate fully with other law enforcerient and

regulatory authorities and agencies in any investigation of Tenet Subsidiary or Tenet or Tenet’s

affiliates-and subsidiaries, ot any of their present or former officers, directors, employees, agents,
and consultants, or-any other party, in any and all matters relating to the conduet described in this
Agreement and Attachment A and other conduct under investigation by the Offices-or any other
component of the Department of Justice at any time during the Term of this Agreement. Tenet
Subsidiary and Tenet agree that their cooperation shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

a, Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet shall truthfully disclose all factual information not
‘protected by a valid claim of attorey-client privilege or work product doctrine
with respect to their activities, those of their affiliates, and those of their present
and former directors, officers. employees, agents, and consultants, including
any evidence or allegations and internal or external investigations, about which
they have any knowledge or about which the Offices may inquire, This

4



obligation of trathful disclosure includes, but is not limited to, the obligation of
Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet to provide to the Offices, upon request, any
document, record or other tangible evidence about which the Offices may
inquire of Tenet Subsidiary or Tenet.

b. Upon request of the Offices, Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet shall designate
knowledgeable employees, agents or attorneys to provide to the Offices the
informiation and materials described above on behalf of Tenet Subsidiary and
Tenet. Itis further understood that Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet must at all times
provide complete, truthful, and accurate information.

¢, Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet shall use their best efforts to make available for
interviews or testimony, as requested by the Offices, present or former officers,
directors, employees, agents and consultants of Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet
within one month of the Offices’ request. This obhgalion includes, but is not
limited to, sworn testimony before a federal grand jury or in federal trials, as
well as inferviews with law enforcement and regulatory authorities.
- ‘Cooperation shall ibclude identification of witnesses who, to the knowledge of
Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet, may have material mfonm{;on regarding the
~matters under investigation.

d. With respect to any information, testimony, documents, records or other
tangible evidence provided to the Offices pursuant to this Agreement, Tenet
Submdlagy and Tenet consents to any and all disclosures, subject to-applicable
law and tegulanons to other governmental authorities of such materials as the
-Qfﬁces in their sole discretion, shall deem appropriate.

e. During the Term of the Agreement; should Tenet Subsidiary or Tenet learn of
evidence or allegations of ‘actual or potential violations of the Anfi-Kickback
Statate; they shall promptly report such evidence or allegations to the Offices,
No later than thirty days afier the expiration of the Term of this Agreement,
Tenet, by the Chief Executive Officer of Tenet and the Chief Financial Officer
of Tenet, will certify to the Department that Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet have
met their disclosuiré obligations pursuant to this Agreement. Such certifications
will be deemed a material statement and representation by Tenet Subsidiary and
“Tenet to the executive brarich of the United States for purposes of 18 U.S.C. §
1001.

6. Corporate Compliance Program. Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet represent that they have
implemented and will continue to maintain Tenet’s compliance and ethics program throughout its
operations, including those of itssubsidiaries, affiliates, agents, and joint ventures (to the extent
that Tenet Subsidiary or Tenet manages or controls such joint ventures), that is designed and
implemented to prevent and detect violations of the Anti-Kickback Statute and Stark Law.




7. Independent Compliance Monitor. Tenet agrees (o retain a Monitor for the term of 3
years from the date on which the Monitor is retained by Tenet, subject to extension or early
termination as described above. The Monitor’s duties and authority, and the obligations of Tenet
with respect to the Monitor and the Offices, are set forth in Attachment C, which is incorporated
by reference into this Agreement. Upon the execution of this Agreement, and afier consultation
with the Offices, Tenet will propose to the Offices a pool of three qualified candidates o serve as
the Monitor. If the Offices determine, i their sole discrefion, that any of the candidates are not,
in fact, qualified to serve as the Monitor, or if the Offices, in their sole discretion, are not satisfied
with. the candidates proposed, the Offices reserve the right to seek additional nominations from
Tenet. The parties will use their best efforts to complete the monitor selection process within sixty
calendar days of the execution of this Agreement. The Monitor candidates or their team members
shall have, at a minimum, the following qualifications:

a. demonstrated expertise with respect to monitoririg and/or evaluating the
effectiveness of corporate compliance programs i the health care
industry;

b. experience designing, reviewing and/or counseling on corporate

compliance policies, procedures and internal controls, including the Anti-
Kickback Statute, the Stark Law, referral source arrangements, and
procurement policies, procedures and internal controls;

c. the ability to access and deploy resources as necessary to discharge thie
Monitor’s duties as described in the Agreement; and

d. sufficient independence from Tenet to ensure ef_?_ﬁéctive and impartial
performance of the Monitor’s duties as described in the Agreement.

8. The Offices retain the right, in their sole discretion, to choose the Monitor from among
the candidates proposed by Tenet, though Tenct may c;(prcss its: preference(s) among the
candidates. In the eyent the Offices reject all proposed Monifors, the Offices shall propose an
additional three candidates within twenty business days afier prov;dmg notice of the rejection fo
Tenet. This process shall continue until a Monitor acceptable to both parties is chosen. The
Offices and Tenet will use their best efforts to complete the manitor selection process within sixty
calendar days of the execution of this Agreement. If the Monitor resigns or is otherwise unable to
fulfill his or her obligations as set out herein and in Attachment C, Tenet shall within twenty
business days of receipt of notice from the Monitor or the Offices, whichever comes first,
recommend a pool of three qualified Monitor candidates from which the Offices will choose a
replacement.

9. The Monitor’s powers, duties, and responsibilities, as well as additional circumstances
that may support an extension of the Monitor’s teym, are set forth in Attachment C. Tenet agrees
that it will not employ or be affiliated with the Monitor or the Monitor’s firmn for a period of not
less than two years from the date on which the Monitor’s term expires. Nor will Tenet discuss
with the Monitor or the Monitor’s firm the possibility of further employment or affiliation during
the Monitor’s term.
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10. Monetary Penalty. The Offices are not requiring Tenet Subsidiary to pay a monetary
penalty under this Agreement, which is conditioned on: (1) Atlanta Medical entering its guilly
plea and paying a $60,091,618 forfeiture money judgment within 10 days after its sentencing; (2)
North Fulton entering its guilty plea and paying a $84,696,727 forfeiture money judgment within
10 days alfter its sentencing; and (3) Tenet paying $368,000,000 to the United States, the State of
Georgia, and the State of South Carolina under the civil Settlement Agreement. The Offices and
Tenet Subsidiary agree that this disposition is appropriate given the relevant considerations
outlined above, including Atlanta Medical and North Fulton’s agreement to pay the forfeiture
money judgments under their respective plea agreements with the Offices, and Tenet’s agreement
to pay the civil settlement amount fo the United States and the State of Georgia under the
Settlement Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed an agreement by the Offices
thdt no monctél_ry_ penalty may be imposed inany future prosecution in the event of a breach of this
Agreement, and the Offices are not precluded from arguing in any potential future prosecution that
the Court should impose a penalty and the amount of such penalty.

11. Conditional Reledse from Liabil_itv. The Offices agree, except as provided herein, that
they will not bring any ¢riminal or civil case against Tenet Subsidiary or any of its present or
former affiliates and parents, including Tenet and ifs subsidiaries and affiliates; relating to any of
the conduct described in the Statement of Facts, atlached hereto as Altachment A. The Offices,
‘however, may use any information related to the conduct described in the attached Statentent of
Facts against Tenet SubsLd:ary or Tenet or any of Tenet’s subsidiaries or affiliates: (a) in a
prosecution for petjury or obstruction of justice; (b) in a proswut:on for raking a-false statement;
() in 2 prosecution.or other prcccedlng relating to any crime of violence; ot (d) in a prosecution
or other procecding relating to a violation of any provision of Title 26 of the:United States Code.
This Agreement does not provide any protection against prosecution for any future conduct by
Tenet Subsidiary, Tenet, or any of its present or former parents, affiliates, or subsidiaries. In
addifion, this Agreement does not provide any protection against prosecution of any individuals,
regardless of their affiliation with Ténet Subsidiary or Tenet.

12. Breach. If, during the Term of this Agreement, (a) Tenet Subsidiary commits any
felony under U.S. federal law or if Tenet commits a felony related to the Anti-Kickback Statute;
(b) Tenet Subsidiary or Tenet provides in connection with this Agreement deliberately false,
incomplete, or misleading information, including in connection with its disclosure of information
about individual culpability; (¢) Tenet Subsidiary or Tenet fails to cooperate as set forth in this
Agreement; (d) Tenet Subsidiary or Tenet fails to continue to implement and maintain a
compliance and ethics program as set forth in this Agreement; (e) Tenet fails to retain an
Independent Comp]lancc Monitor as set forth in this Agreement and in Attachment C; or (f) Tenet
Subsidiary or Tenet otherwise fails specifically to perform or to fulfill completely each of Tenet
Subsidiary and Tenet obligations under the Agreement, regardless of whether the Offices become
aware of such a breach after the Term of the Agreement is complete, Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet,
and Tenet's subsidiaries and affiliates shall thereafier be subject to prosecution for any federal
criminal violation of which the Offices have knowledge, including, but not limited to, the conduct
described in the attached Statement of Facts, which may be pursued by the Offices in the U.S.
District Court for the Northern District of Georgia or any other appropriate venue. Deterniination
of whether Tenet Subsidiary or Tenet has breached the Agreement and whether to pursue
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prosecution of Tenet Subsidiary, Tenet, or Tenet's subsidiaries or affiliates shall be m the Offices’
sole discretion.  Any such prosecution may be premised on information provided by Tenet
Subsidiary, Tenet, or Tenet’s subsidiaries or affiliates. Any such prosccution relating to the
conduct described in the attached Statement of Facts or relating to conduct known to the Offices
prior to the date on which this Agreement was signed that is not time-barred by the applicable
statute of limitations on the date of the signing of this Agreement may be commenced against
Tenet Subsidiary, Tenet, or Tenet's subsidiaries or affiliates, notwithstanding the expiration of the
statute of limitations, between the signing of this Agreement and the expiration of the Term plus
one year. Thus, by executing this Agreement, Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet agree that the statute of
Jimitations with respect to any such prosecution that is not time-barred on the date of the signing
of this Agreement shall be tolled for the Term plus one year. In addition, Tenet Subsidiary and
Tenet agree that the statute of limitations as to any violation of federal law that occurs during the
Term will be tolled from the date upon which the violation accurs until the earlier of the date upon
which the Offices are made aware of the violation or the duration of the Term plus five years, and
that this period shall be excluded from any calculation of time for purposes of the application of
the statute of limitations.

13. In the event the Offices determine that Tenet Subsidiary or "Tenet has breached this
Agreement, the Offices agree to provide Tenet Submdmw and Tenet with written notice prior to
instituting any prosecution of Tenet Subsidiary-or Tenet resulting from such breach. Within thirty
days of receipt of such notice, Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet shall have the opportunity to respond
to the Offices in writing to explain the nature and-circumstances of the breach, as well as the
actions Tenet Subsidiary and Tenct have taken to address and remediate the situation, which the
Offices shall consider in determining whether to pursue prosecution of Tenet Subsidiary, Tenet,
or Tenet's subsidiaries or affiliates.

14. In the event that the Offices determine that Tenet Subsidiary or Tenet has breached
this Agreement: (a) all statements made by or on behalf of Tenet Subsidiary or Tenet, or Tenet’s
subsidiarics or affiliates to the Offices or fo the Court, including the attached Statement of Facts,
and any testimony given by Tenct Subsidiary or Tenet, or Tenet’s subsidiaries or affiliates before
a grand jury, a court, or any tribunal, or at any legislative hearings, whether prior or subsequent to
this. A}vrcement and any leads derived from such statements or testimony, shall nat be challenged

by Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet or Tenet’s subsidiaries or affiliates and shall be admissible in

evidence in any and all criminal proceedings brought by the Offices. against Tenet Subsidiary,
Tenet, or Tenet’s subsidiaries or affiliates; and (b) Tenet Subsidiary, Tenet, or Tenet’s subsidiaries
or affiliates shall not assert any claim under the United States Constitution, Rule 11(f) of the
Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 410 of the Federal Rules of Evidence, or any other
federal rule that any such statements or testimony made by or on behalf of Tenet Subsidiary, Tenet,
or Tenet's subsidiaries or affiliates prior or subsequent to this Agreement, or any leads derived
theretfrom, should be suppressed or are otherwise inadmissible. The decision whether conduct or
statements of any current director, officer or employee, or any person acting on behalf of, or at the
direction of, Tenet Subsidiary, Tenet, or Tenet’s subsidiaries or affiliates, will be itaputed to Tenet
Subsidiary or Tenet for the purpose of determining whether Tenet Subsidiary or Tenet has
breached any provision of this Agreement shall be in the sole discretion of the Offices.



15. Sale or Merger. Except as may otherwise be agreed by the partics in connection with
a particular transaction, Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet agree that in the event that, during the Term
of the Agreement, they sell, merge, or transfer all or substantially all of their respective business
operations or the business operations of their subsidiaries or affiliates involved in the conduct
described in Attachment A of the Agreement attached hereto as they exist as of the date of the
Agreement, whether such sale is structured as a sale, asset sale, merger, transfer, or other change
in corporate form, they shall include in any contract for sale, merger, transfer, or other change in
corporate form a provision binding the purchaser to retain the commitment of Tenet Subsidiary or
Tenet, or any successor in interest thereto, to comply with the obligations described in this
Agreement, such that the obligations of this Agreement continue to apply to such business
operations following the completion of the transaction. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in
this Section 15 shall be construed as applying to assets not owned by Tenet or Tenet Subsidiary as
of the date immediately prior to the closing of any such sale, merger, transfer or other change in
corporate form. Except as may otherwise be agreed by the parties hereto in connection with a
particular transaction, if, during the Term of the Agreement, Tenet Subsidiary or Tenet undertake
any change in corporate form that involves business operations that are material to their
consolidated operations or to the operations of any subsidiaries or affiliates involved in the conduct
described in Attachment A of the Agreement attached hereto, whether such transaction is
structured as a sale, asset sale, merger, transfer, or other change in corporate form, Tenet
Subsidiary -and Tenet shall provide notice to the Offices at least thirty (30) days prior to
undertaking any such change in corporate form. If such transaction (or series of transactions) has
the effect of circumventing or frustrating the enforcement purposes of this Agreement, as
determined in the sole discretion of the Offices, it shall be-deemed a breach of this Agreement.

16. Limitations on Binding Effect of Agreement. This Agreement is binding on Tenet
Subsidiary, Tenet (as reflected in the resolution hereto attached as Attachment B), and the Offices
but spcuf'rcally does not bind any ether component of the Department of Justice, other federal
agencies, or any state or local law enforcement or regulatory agencies, or any other authorities,
although the Offices will bring the cooperation of Tenet Subsidiary and Tenet and its compliance
with its other obligations under this Agreement to the attention of such agencies and authorities if
requested to do so by Tenet Subsidiary or Tenet.

17. The.Offices and Tenet Subsidiary agree that this Agreement is null and void if:
(a) Atlanta Medical does not enter its guilty plea and does not pay a forfeiture money judgment in
the amount of $84,696,727 within 10 days of its sentencing; (b) North Fulton does not enter its
guilty plea and does not pay a forfeiture money judgment in the amount of $60,091,618 within 10
days of its sentencing; and (c) Tenet does not pay $368.,000,000 ta the United States, the State of
Georgia, and the State of South Carolina under the terms of the civil Settlement Agreement.

18. It is further understood that Tenet Subsidiary, Tenet, and the Offices may disclose this
Agreement o the public.



19. Complete Agreement. This Agreement sets forth all the termms of the agreement
between Tenct Subsidiary and the Offices. No amendments, modifications or additions (o this
Agreement shall be valid unless they are in writing and signed by the Offices, the attorneys for
Tenet Subsidiary, and duly authorized representatives of Tenet Subsidiary.

Sincerely,

. £ wV i T 4 4, .;-)’, o
{/ f v ,w,;;/éﬁ”&(% 7 Lite. (/ ;f»,{/_,/’:{,-r

ANDREW WEISSMANN

Chief, Fraud Section

Criminal Division _

United States Department of Justice

Joseph S. Beemsterboer
Deputy Chief, Fraud Section

Robert A. Zink
Assistant Chief, Fraud Section

Sally B. Molloy

Antonio M. Pozos

Trial Attorneys

PFraud Section, Health Care Unit
Corporate Strike Force

JOIMYA. HORN B
United States Attorrey
Northern District of Georgia

Randy S. Chartash
Chief, Economic Crimeé Section

Stephen H: McClain
Deputy Chief, Health Care Fraud
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ATTACHMENT A

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The following Statement of Facts 1s incorporated by reference as part of the non-
prosecution agreement (the “Agreement”) between the United States Department of Justice,
Criminal Division, Fraud Section, and the United States Attorney’s Office for the Northern District
of Georgia (the “Offices”). Tenet HealthSystem Medical, Inc. (on its behalf and on behalf of its
subsidiaries identified below) (collectively, “Tenet Subsidiary”), hereby agrees and stipulates that
the following information is true and accurate. Tenet Subsidiary admits, accepts, and
acknowledges that it is responsible for the acts of its officers, directors, employees, and agents as
set forth below:

The Federal Health Care Anti-Kickback Statute

1. The federal Anti-Kickback Statute prohibited any person from knowingly and
willfully offering or paying any remuneration (including a kickback, bribe, or rebate), directly or
indirectly, overtly or covertly, in cash or in kind, to any person to induce such person: (a) to refer
an individual to a person for the furnishing or arranging for the furnishing of any item or service
for which payment can be made in whole or part by a Federal health care program; or (b) to
purchase, lease, order, or arrange for or recommend purchasing, leasing, or ordering any good,
facility, service, or item for which payment may be made in whole or in part under a Federal
health care program. 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(b)(2)(A)-(B).

2. The statute likewise prohibited any person from knowingly and willfully soliciting
or receiving any remuneration (including a kickback, bribe, or rebate), directly or indirectly,
overtly or covertly, in cash or in kind: (a) in return for referring an individual to a person for the
furnishing or arranging for the furnishing of any item or service for which payment can be made
in whole or part by a Federal health care program; or (b) in return for purchasing, leasing,
ordering, or arranging for or recommending purchasing, leasing, or ordering any good, facility,
service, or item for which payment may be made in whole or in part under a Federal health care
program. 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(b)(1)(A)-(B).

3. The Medicare Program and the Medicaid Program were “Federal health care
program(s],” as defined in Title 42, United States Code, Section 1320a-7b(f) and “health care
benefit program[s]” as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 24(b).

The Medicare Program

4. In 1965, Congress enacted Title XVIII of the Social Security Act, known as the
Medicare program, to pay for the costs of certain healthcare services. Entitlement to Medicare is
based on age, disability or affliction with end-stage renal disease. 42 U.S.C. §§ 426, 426A.

5. The Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS™) was responsible for the
administration and supervision of the Medicare program. The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services (CMS) was an agency of HHS and was directly responsible for the administration of the
Medicare program.




